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CITY OF STOCKTON 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 
 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 
 
 

FFY 2013/14 STREET RESURFACING PROJECT NO. PW1429 
  FEDERAL PROJECT NO. STPL 5008(132) 

 
02/12/15 
 
Question:  I do not find the Section 2-1.07 mentioned below, and I have not found a 
"Bidder's Bond Form."  Would you please confirm if there is a special bid bond form that 
must be utilized for this project and where I would find it? 
             
            The Bidder's Bond form mentioned in the last paragraph in Section 2-1.07, 
"Proposal Guaranty," of the Standard Specifications will be found following the signature 
page of the Proposal 
 
Answer:  The Section 2-1.07, " Proposal Guaranty" is referring to the Caltrans 2006 
Stand, which mainly speaks of bidders’ security. This also can be found in the project's 
Bid Flash link, Instruction to Bidders, section 6.4, "Bidder's Security". The web link is, 
http://www.stocktongov.com/services/business/bidFlash/projDetail.html?dept=Public_W
orks,idnum=PW1429-Federal-Project-No.-STPL-5008-132 
 
 
Question:  So I am safe in assuming there is "NO SPECIAL BOND FORM" that I need 
to have our bonding company use when issuing the bid bond? 
 
Answer:  Yes. We don't require a specific bond form. Whatever form the issuing 
company provides is fine, as long it meets the requirements. 
 
 
02/13/15 
 
Question:  Could you please clarify if Builder’s Risk insurance is going to be required 
for this project and, if so, will an installation floater be acceptable?  Thank you! 
 
Answer:  Builders Risk Insurance is not required for the project. We will issue a Letter 
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of Clarification to delete the Builder's Risk Insurance verbiage in exhibit B (Insurance 
Requirements for Construction Contracts). 
 
 
Question:  Is the pre-bid meeting at Lincoln Street Office? 
 
Answer:  No. The pre-bid meeting will be at the Council Chambers, City Hall, Second 
Floor, 425 N. El Dorado Street. 
 
 
Question:  What is the estimated budget or a probable cost range for the project? 
 
Answer:  Below $2.4 million. Please see "Notice to Contractors" in the bid flash for 
other important information. 
 
02/17/15 
 
Question:  Are plan holder’s list available? 
 
Answer:  The Planholder’s List will be posted online:  
 
 
Question:  The Bidding Schedule in the “Bid Forms” (page 5) lists Item No. 22 as PCC 
Sidewalk Remove and Replace with a quantity of 500 “EA.”  The Estimated Quantity 
Sheet in the plan set (Sheet No. 3) lists the PCC Sidewalk as 500 “EA.”  Both of these 
differ from Section 9-1.01 Description of Work of the Special Provisions (page 27), Work 
Item No. 22 which lists remove and replace PCC sidewalk as 500 “SF” and not “EA.”  Is 
the unit of measure to bid “SF” or “EA”? 
 
If possible can you make the Bidding Schedule formatting for row height a minimum of 
double space?  For example, reference “Bid Forms” page 5, bid item 26 has enough 
room in the Unit Price and Total Price cells to enter a price, and if needed, cross-out 
first price entry to enter a new price.  However, bid item 27 does not have enough room 
in the Unit Price and Total Price cells to make corrections, and if changes are required 
it’s going to make for a messy and potentially confusing submittal.  We anticipate sub 
prices coming in at the last minute with price cuts, and this will likely mean we will need 
to make last minute changes to bid prices.  Also, please make the Total Price cell a little 
wider to accommodate the large item total prices 
 
Answer:  Thanks for your inquiries. Line item no. 22, "PCC Sidewalk Remove and 
Replace..." should be square feet (SF) and Line item no. 23, "PCC Curb Gutter Remove 
and Replace..." is Linear Feet (LF, as shown in Bid Form). Please see the Letters of 
Clarification No. 1. 
 
 
 



Page 3 of 8 
 

 
Question:  The Part II form of Exhibit 12B in the Bid Forms would be hard to submit with 
the bid as we generally get bids from prospective subcontractors at last minutes. Can we 
extend the submittal of the Part II form up to four days from the bid opening? Also, can a 
column be added to add DIR numbers in the, “List of Subcontractors” form? 
 
Answer:  These matters is under review by our contract compliance staff. A Letter of 
Clarification will be issued if the change is warranted.   
 
02/18/15 
 
Question: The crack seal specs are a bit unclear. The spec reads Treat cracks from ¼ and 
greater. What is the maximum size of the crack? Also, filling cracks wider than 1 inch:  is 
that change order work? 
 
Answer: Generally, crack-sealing beyond 1” wide is inefficient and should be converted to 
base repair work.  
 
 
Question: Spec calls out for the cracks to be routed as described in the plans. Typically, 
the detail is shown; however in this case there is no detail.  Could the City be more specific 
as to what the Contactor is required to do? Example: 
Construct the reservoir ___ inches wide by ___ inches deep. 
 
Answer: Width of routing = Width of crack + ¼” Minimum. Depth of Routing = Depth of 
Routing = Width of crack + ¼” Minimum.  A Letter of Clarification will be issued to add the 
typical drawing to plans sheet No.2. 
 
 
Question: The Crack seal item is being bid per SF. Is this a typo? Typically the Crack seal 
is bid per LF. 
 
Answer:  Unit is SF for Square Foot.  Seal random cracks will be measured along the edge 
of each paved lane, to which sealant is applied. The length of area to be paid for will be 
determined from actual measurement. Such measurement will be made parallel to the 
gradient of the pavement as determined by the Engineer. 
 
Question: Special Provisions, section 11-1.20 Smoothness, states the Engineer may 
request the use of Profilograph in lieu of the 12-foot straightedge.  There is large difference 
in cost between using a 12-foot straightedge and performing a Profilograph.  Also, since we 
are simply removing and replacing 6” of existing material and not performing a leveling 
course or grade corrections, a pre-construction Profilograph would need to be performed in 
order to compare to the new HMA pavement Profilograph.  Please confirm the City wants 
bidders to include the cost to perform pre-construction Profilographs, and Profilographs on 
new pavement for each location in their bids.  Also, in which item of work does the 
Profilograph get paid in? 
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Answer:  As stated in Section 11-1.20, the Engineer may request the use of Profilograph. 
This can be asked if the finish product of the base repair work is unacceptable. There is no 
need to do Profilograph on preconstruction. 
 
 
Question: Special Provisions, Section 11-1.10 Contractor Quality Control, and Section 
11-1.22 Contractor’s Quality Control and Acceptance Testing, references core samples. 
 Is this project considered a QC/QA project per Caltrans Standards, where the 
Contractor is responsible for hiring and paying a third party QA firm?  Or will the City be 
covering the costs of lab testing, and field testing? 
 
Answer:  The Contractor is to provide QC/QA at his or her expense. The City will hire 
an independent testing to do spot check. All pertinent QC/QA and its associated labor, 
equipment, traffic control, incidentals, etc. shall be included in various bid items and no 
extra compensation will be given. 
 
 
Question: Special Provisions, Section 11-1.16 Compacting – Base Failure Repair, and 
Section 11-1.21 Acceptance Testing for HMA, references the use of a nuclear gauge for 
in-place density of HMA.  Is the City responsible for providing in-place density testing 
with nuclear gauge, or are bidders to provide for technician include this cost in their 
bids? 
 
Answer:  As part of core samples for determination of the density of completed 
pavements, the Contractor is to provide nuclear gauge as indicated in the Section 11-
1.21. The cost is the Contractor’s expense as it is considered included in various bid 
items. 
   

 
 
Question: Special Provisions, Section 11-1.16 Compacting – Base Failure Repair 
references construction of a test strip.  Please confirm this test strip is simply the first dig-
out on the first full day of base failure repairs, and not a separate operation. 
 
Answer:  Correct, just the first dig-out day.  The test strip is to establish a rolling pattern 
to achieve a minimum density of 92% of maximum theoretical density. 
 
02/19/15 
 
Question: Special Provisions, section 14-1.02 Concrete Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk, and Curb-
Ramp, 5th paragraph, references “dual ramps (two ramps in one corner)”.  Are any of the 5 
locations identified on the plans for removal and replacement of curb ramps to be “dual 
ramps”, or are they all to be single ramps? 
 
Answer:  All single ramps. 
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Question: The plans do not show the limits of AC removal and replacement for the curb 
ramps, but they do reference City of Stockton Standard Drawing No. 31 & 32.   Dwg. Nos. 
31 & 32 provide for 1’ min sawcut for removal and replacement of AC from lip of gutter.  
Special Provisions, section 14-1.02 Concrete Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk, and Curb-Ramp, 6th 
paragraph, references “the removal of asphalt-concrete pavement up to five (5) feet from lip 
of the gutter”.  There is a significant difference in removal quantities and replacement 
quantities, between removal of 1’ of AC materials from lip of gutter and 5’ of materials from 
lip of gutter.  Are any of the 5 locations identified on the plans for removal and replacement 
of curb ramps to include more than the 1’ sawcut from lip of gutter for the removal and 
replacement of AC shown on Dwg Nos. 31 & 32? 
 
Answer:  We intend to remove the existing asphalt concrete pavement t up to 5 feet from 
the lip of the gutter when installing all curb-ramps.  
 
Question: Special Provisions, section 14-1.02 Concrete Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk, and Curb-
Ramp, 7th paragraph, references runoff not accumulating at the flow line of curb ramps.  
Plan sheet No. 4 identifies two locations for curb ramp installation on El Campo Ave and El 
Dorado St.  Both of these curb ramp locations have an existing SD catch basin inlet at the 
flow line in the middle of the curb return, see attached photo.  Neither the plans nor the bid 
schedule identifies SD relocation scope of work.  Please confirm the existing SD inlets will 
remain in their current locations, or if the City intends for the relocation of existing SD catch 
basins.  If the City intends for relocation of catch basins, please provide design details 
showing what is to be removed and what is to be installed, including catch basin profiles 
identifying existing invert elevations, and future invert elevations 
 
Answer:  There is no relocation of catch basins work involved with the curb-ramp 
installation. However, adjustment of catch basins (up/down) may be needed to fit an ADA 
complaint curb-ramp.    
 
Question:  Plan Sheet No. 10 identifies four locations for installation of tactile dome 
surfaces at the intersection of West Lane and West Lane Frontage Rd.  The four tactile 
dome locations are shown on the plans to be installed behind existing edge of pavement.  
The existing surface at these four locations varies from gravel to dirt, see attached photos.  
How are contractors to install tactile dome surfaces at these locations?  If it’s the City’s 
intent for contractors to install a concrete level pad surface at these locations, please 
provide a design detail showing what is to be saw cut and removed, the dimensions of the 
new pads to be installed, the section thickness of concrete and agg base, etc.  There is not 
enough information in the current bid documents for bidders to price this work. 
 
Answer:  The installation of tactile domes shall include ADA approved surface preparation. 
For the West Lane location, where no existing improvement (i.e. curb, gutter and sidewalk), 
a  6’x6’ surface pad (PCC or AC) of 4 inches thick  shall be installed with the tactile dome.  
A Letter of Clarification will be issued to add the typical drawing to plans sheet No.2. 
 
 
 



Page 6 of 8 
 

Question:  Special Provisions, Section 14-1.02 Concrete Curb, Gutter, Sidewalk, and Curb-
Ramp, page 89, references truncated dome panels.  This section provides for all truncated 
dome panels to be cast-in-place and embedded in the concrete for curb ramps being 
constructed.  This section does not address the work in bid item no. 20 Install Tactile 
Domes (3’X4’).   Please confirm for the 58 EA locations in bid item no. 20 that these are to 
be surface applied dome tiles and not embedded.  Does the city have a list of pre-qualified 
and approved Surface Applied Dome Tile products?  If the installation requirements for 
surface applied products are to be different than manufacturer's recommendations, please 
provide a specification. 
 
Answer:  The bid item No. 20, “Install Tactile Domes (3’x4’) Include ADA Approved Surface 
Preparation Work (PCC and/or AC)…”  shall be installed as cast-in-place and embedded  in 
the concrete. The list of pre-qualified panels is provided in the Section 14-1.02. The 
Contractor can submit a request for “ approved equal” product at least 15 days before 
commencement of the project as stated in aforementioned Section. 
 
 
Question:  Plan sheet No. 06 identifies five locations for installation of concrete extruded 
curb on West Lane.  The sheet legend references COS Dwg. No. 22 for installation.  COS 
Dwg. No.  22 shows extruded curb is installed on existing AC pavement that is flat.  Plan 
Sheet No. 02 includes an “extruded curb placement detail” which shows the new extruded 
curb is to be installed in the same location as the existing median curb.  Our site 
investigation revealed existing conditions at the proposed locations for extruded curb vary 
from exposed PCC curb varying in height, and lengths were the PCC curb has been paved 
over with AC and is now uneven and cracked.  Neither the project plans nor COS Dwg. 22 
reference saw cutting and removal of exiting improvement to prepare pavement for 
installation of new extruded curb.   Is the contractor to dowel into and install extruded curb 
on existing concrete curb and/or uneven cracked AC pavement?  
 
Answer:  Extruded curb is to dowel on the existing PCC or AC median. No removal of 
existing pavement is required as the intention of the installation is to raise the curb around 
the median noses. 
 
 
2/23/2014 
 
Question: The plan sheets are not to scale.  Furthermore the plan sheets appear to 
have a different vertical and horizontal scale making it exceedingly difficult to measure 
the proposed improvements, specifically the dig out widths and lengths.  Plan Sheet No. 
03 summarizes quantities of dig outs by Road No. (1-7), with a breakdown of dig outs 
by width in each Road No. segment.  However, bidders need to know how quantities 
breakdown by lane in each Road No. segment.  Please provide bidders a further 
breakout of the summarized quantities by lane in each Road No. segment, or at least a 
breakdown of the dig out dimensions that make up the summarized quantities on the 
Estimate Quantity Sheet.   Alternatively, if the linework from the plan sheets is available 
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in CAD and to scale, bidders can use this to determine digouts by lane if CAD files are 
provided to bidders. 

 
Answer: The drawing plans state not to scale. Regarding base repair (dig-outs) 
quantities, the areas per segments are broken down to various widths of 4’, 6’ 8’ and 
12’, which equate to the total base repair column.  These are just approximate and may 
grow a bit as we did the field survey over a year ago.  The tonnage quantity for the base 
repair per road segments is based on its respective total baser repair area and 6” deep 
dig-out. There is no further break down available for the base-repair.  
 

Question: Special Provisions, Section 5-1.12 Encroachment Permit from City, County, 
Utilities, Railroads and Others, Section 5-1.27 Relations with California Regional Water 
Quality Control Board, and Section 5-1.07 Environmental Protection, reference storm 
water (including non-storm water discharge) quality control plans. Section 5-1.12 lists 
items and whether the contractor shall “obtain”, “possess”, prepare and submit, 
“complete”, etc.  However, for the three items dealing with storm water (SWPCP, NOI, 
NOT) there is no direction just a mention of these items.  Has the city already submitted 
an NOI, and developed a SWPPP for this project?  If so what BMP’s and quantities are 
bidders to comply with?  If not, are bidders responsible for providing a QSD to develop a 
SWPPP plan? 

 
Answer: This project is exempt for General permit as this project is considered a 
maintenance work. However, the bidders shall submit the appropriate BMP plan. The 
cost for the said plan shall be included in various bid items and no additional 
compensation will be given.  

 
 



Page 8 of 8 
 

Question: Special Provisions, Section 10-1.14 Sweeping, and Section 5-1.07 
Environmental Protection, reference removing material out of the storm water system 
irrespective of the system’s condition before the construction of work and whether or not 
the accumulation of debris is the direct result of contractor’s operations.  What is limit of 
scope for cleaning out the storm system, particularly for existing conditions of the storm 
system prior to start of construction?  Is it the City intent for contractors to vacuum out 
intermittent inlets where construction debris is present, or are bidders to include the cost 
of cleaning out every DI along the project? 

 
Answer:  As part of the BMP plan, all DI’s (drain inlets) shall be protected during 
construction. If any construction materials get in to the drain inlet, the Contractor shall 
clean per Section 12-2.16. For the limit of sweeping, these include but not limited to 
within the construction sites; the adjacent streets and intersection; and the equipment 
staging and its routes. 

 
Question: Can you confirm the unit of measure for items 20 and 22?  And do these 
items go together, meaning item 20 is for the domes required for item 22? 
 
Answer:  Item 20 is for installing truncated dome and surface preparation (truncated 
domes has to be wet set). The measure unit is EA. We have provided a typical detail 
dwg. 
 
Item 22 is sidewalk pcc and the measure of unit shoud be SF. The typo of EA has been 
corrected in the Letter of Clarification.  Item 22 is separate from item 20.   

  

February 25, 2015 
 
Question: The answer on pg. 8 of the Questions and Answers document references 
protecting all DI's within the limit of construction, the adjacent streets or intersections, 
and staging locations.  For a project this size there are many DI's.  In which item of work 
does the installing and removal of DI protection get paid? 
 
Answer: Protecting DI is part of the BMP plan and shall be included in various line 
items as we don't have specific line item for it.  
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